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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA CRIMINAL ACTION

V.

JOSEPH R. JOHNSON, JR. NO. 19-367

MEMORANDUM

Bartle, J. February 20, 2020

On June 17, 2019, a federal grand jury returned an
indictment charging defendant Joseph R. Johnson, Jr. (““Johnson’)
with one count of making false statements and aiding and
abetting in violation of 18 U.S.C. 88 1001 and 2, and one count
of aggravated i1dentity theft and aiding and abetting iIn
violation of 18 U.S.C. 88 1028A and 2. After a three-day trial,
Johnson was found guilty of both charges by a jury. Johnson has
filed several post-trial motions, including his present motion
for arrest of judgment under Rule 34 of the Federal Rules of
Criminal Procedure.

Rule 34 provides, in pertinent part: “upon the
defendant”’s motion or on its own, the court must arrest judgment
if the court does not have jurisdiction of the charged offense.”
The term “jurisdiction” iIn this context means “the courts’
statutory or constitutional power to adjudicate the case.”

Steel Co. v. Citizens for Better Environment, 523 U.S. 83, 89,

(1998). 1t is well established that Rule 34 does not permit a
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court to arrest a judgment based on shortcomings of an

indictment. Lamar v. United States, 240 U.S. 60 (1916).

Defects in an indictment are not jurisdictional issues and ‘“do
not deprive a court of its power to adjudicate a case.”

United States v. Cotton, 535 U.S. 625, 630 (2002); see also

United States v. Vitillo, 490 F.3d 314, 320 (3d Cir. 2007).

Johnson asserts four arguments in support of this
motion for arrest of judgment. First, Johnson maintains that
count one of the indictment was constructively amended because
of jury instructions, and even if it was not constructively
amended, 18 U.S.C. 8 1001 does not cover false statements made
in court pleadings. Second, Johnson contends that count two of
the indictment failed to confer federal jurisdiction because it
did not contain an element for establishing the violation of
aggravated identity theft, namely that the “defendant knew the
means of i1dentification belonged to another person.” Third,
Johnson argues that count two of the indictment fails to charge
an offense under the aggravated i1dentity theft statute because
“a name, alone, is not a means of identification.” Fourth,
Johnson asserts that this court erred in rendering its aiding
and abetting jury instructions because i1t did not address
“foreknowledge or specific intent,” but permitted the jury to

“convict on a lesser mens rea standard of culpability.”
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Simply put, none of these arguments goes to the
jurisdiction of the court. Accordingly, the motion of Johnson

for arrest of judgment will be denied.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA CRIMINAL ACTION

V.

JOSEPH R. JOHNSON, JR. NO. 19-367

ORDER

AND NOW, this 20th day of February, 2020, for the
reasons set forth in the foregoing memorandum, it is hereby
ORDERED that the motion of defendant for arrest of judgment

(Doc. # 61) 1s DENIED.

BY THE COURT:

/s/ Harvey Bartle 111
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